

PUBLIC NOTICE

December 29, 2023

Pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Section 447.205, public notice is hereby given for the submission of a Medicaid State Plan Amendment (SPA) 24-0003 Physician Upper Payment Limit (UPL). The Division of Medicaid, in the Office of the Governor, will submit this proposed SPA to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) effective January 1, 2024, contingent upon approval from CMS, our Transmittal #24-0003.

1. SPA 24-0003 is being submitted to allow the Division of Medicaid (DOM) to update the initial Medicare Equivalent of the average commercial rate (ACR) ratio and remove other professional practitioners, effective January 1, 2024.
2. The expected annual impact is cost savings of \$2,771,327. The federal annual aggregate expenditures is a savings of \$1,606,053 for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY24) and a savings of \$2,131,150 for FFY25. The expected decrease in state annual aggregate expenditures is \$472,442 for FFY 24 and \$640,177 for FFY25.
3. The changes made in this State Plan Amendment comply with Miss. Code Ann. § 43-13-117. Under the Medicare Equivalent of the ACR methodology, the Medicare Equivalent ratio must be updated every three (3) years. The Division of Medicaid is submitting this proposed SPA to comply with 42 C.F.R. 447.201 which requires that the State Plan describe the policy and methods to be used in setting payment rates for each type of service included in the State's Medicaid program.
4. A copy of the proposed SPA will be available in each county health department office and in the Department of Human Services office in Issaquena County for review. A hard copy can be downloaded and printed from www.medicaid.ms.gov, or requested at 601-359-3984 or by emailing at DOMPolicy@medicaid.ms.gov.
5. Written comments will be received by the Division of Medicaid, Office of the Governor, Office of Policy, Walter Sillers Building, Suite 1000, 550 High Street, Jackson, Mississippi 39201, or DOMPolicy@medicaid.ms.gov for thirty (30) days from the date of publication of this notice. Comments will be available for public review at the above address and on the Division of Medicaid's website at www.medicaid.ms.gov.
6. A public hearing on this SPA will not be held.

State of Mississippi

METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES-OTHER TYPES OF CARE

Supplemental Payments for Physician ~~and Professional Services Practitioners~~ at Qualifying Hospitals

Effective for dates of payment on or after January 1, 2024, the Division of Medicaid will make supplemental payments for physicians ~~and other professional services practitioners~~ who are employed by or contracted with a qualifying hospital for services rendered to Medicaid beneficiaries. These supplemental payments will be equal to the difference between the average commercial payment rate and the amount otherwise paid pursuant to the fee schedule for physicians' services under Attachment 4.19-B.

1. Qualifying Criteria

Physicians ~~and other eligible professional service practitioners~~ as specified in 2. below who are employed by a qualifying hospital or who assigned Mississippi Medicaid payments to a qualifying hospital. The term "qualifying hospital" means a Mississippi state-owned academic health science center with a Level 1 trauma center, Level 4 neonatal intensive care nursery, an organ transplant program, and more than a four hundred (400) physician multispecialty practice group. To qualify for the supplemental payment, the physician ~~or professional service practitioner~~ must be:

- a. Licensed by the State of Mississippi, and
- b. Enrolled as a Mississippi Medicaid provider.

2. Qualifying Provider Types

For purposes of qualifying for supplemental payments under this section, services provided by the following professional practitioners will be included:

- a. Physicians;
- b. ~~Physician Assistants,~~
- c. ~~Nurse Practitioners,~~
- d. ~~Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists,~~
- e. ~~Certified Nurse Midwives,~~
- f. ~~Clinical Social Workers,~~
- g. ~~Clinical Psychologists,~~
- h. ~~Dentists, and~~
- i. ~~Optometrists.~~

State of Mississippi

**METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES-OTHER
TYPES OF CARE**

3. Payment Methodology

The supplemental payment will be determined in a manner to bring payments for these services up to the average ~~commercial~~ commercial rate level. The average ~~commercial~~ commercial rate level is defined as the rates paid by commercial payers for the same service. Under this methodology the terms physician and physician services include services provided by all qualifying provider types as set forth in 2. above.

The specific methodology to be used in establishing the supplemental payment for physician services is as follows:

- a. For services provided by physicians at a qualifying hospital, the Division of Medicaid will collect from the hospital its current commercial physician fees by the current procedural terminology (CPT) code for the hospital's top five (5) commercial payers by volume.
- b. The Division of Medicaid will calculate the average commercial fee for each CPT code for each physician practice plan or physician that provides services at the qualifying hospital.
- c. The Division of Medicaid will extract from its paid claims history file for the preceding fiscal year all paid claims for those physicians who will qualify for a supplemental payment. The Division of Medicaid will align the average commercial fee for each CPT code as determined in 3.b. above to each Medicaid claim for that physician or physician practice plan and calculate the average commercial payments for the claims.
- d. The Division of Medicaid will also align the same paid Medicaid claims with the Medicare fees for each CPT code for the physician or physician practice plan and calculate the Medicare payment amounts for those claims. The Medicare fees will be the most currently available national non-facility fees.
- e. The Division of Medicaid will then calculate an overall Medicare to commercial conversion factor by dividing the total amount of the average commercial payments for the claims by the total Medicare payments for the claims. The commercial to Medicare ratio will be re-determined every three (3) years.

State of Mississippi

**METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES-OTHER
TYPES OF CARE**

- f. For each quarter the Division of Medicaid will extract paid Medicaid claims for each qualifying provider types for that quarter.
- g. The Division of Medicaid will then calculate the amount Medicare would have paid for those claims by aligning the claims with the Medicare fee schedule by CPT code. The Medicare fees will be the national non-facility fees that were effective at the time the Medicaid claims were paid.
- h. The total amount that Medicare would have paid for those claims is then multiplied by the Medicare to commercial conversion factor and the amount Medicaid actually paid for those claims is subtracted to establish the supplemental payment amount for the qualifying provider types for that quarter.

The supplemental payments will be made on a quarterly basis and the Medicare equivalent of the average commercial rate of ~~158.63~~159.28% factor will be rebased/updated every three (3) years by the Division of Medicaid. Supplemental payments will be directly remitted to the qualifying hospital or the physician practice plan to which ~~participating~~participating physicians have assigned the Mississippi Medicaid payment.

State of Mississippi

**METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES-OTHER
TYPES OF CARE**

Supplemental Payments for Physician at Qualifying Hospitals

Effective for dates of payment on or after January 1, 2024, the Division of Medicaid will make supplemental payments for physicians who are employed by or contracted with a qualifying hospital for services rendered to Medicaid beneficiaries. These supplemental payments will be equal to the difference between the average commercial payment rate and the amount otherwise paid pursuant to the fee schedule for physicians' services under Attachment 4.19-B.

1. Qualifying Criteria

Physicians as specified in 2. below who are employed by a qualifying hospital or who assigned Mississippi Medicaid payments to a qualifying hospital. The term "qualifying hospital" means a Mississippi state-owned academic health science center with a Level 1 trauma center, Level 4 neonatal intensive care nursery, an organ transplant program, and more than a four hundred (400) physician multispecialty practice group. To qualify for the supplemental payment, the physician must be:

- a. Licensed by the State of Mississippi, and
- b. Enrolled as a Mississippi Medicaid provider.

2. Qualifying Provider Types

For purposes of qualifying for supplemental payments under this section, services provided by the following professional practitioners will be included:

- a. Physicians

State of Mississippi

**METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES-OTHER
TYPES OF CARE**

3. Payment Methodology

The supplemental payment will be determined in a manner to bring payments for these services up to the average commercial rate level. The average commercial rate level is defined as the rates paid by commercial payers for the same service. Under this methodology the terms physician and physician services include services provided by all qualifying provider types as set forth in 2. above.

The specific methodology to be used in establishing the supplemental payment for physician services is as follows:

- a. For services provided by physicians at a qualifying hospital, the Division of Medicaid will collect from the hospital its current commercial physician fees by the current procedural terminology (CPT) code for the hospital's top five (5) commercial payers by volume.
- b. The Division of Medicaid will calculate the average commercial fee for each CPT code for each physician practice plan or physician that provides services at the qualifying hospital.
- c. The Division of Medicaid will extract from its paid claims history file for the preceding fiscal year all paid claims for those physicians who will qualify for a supplemental payment. The Division of Medicaid will align the average commercial fee for each CPT code as determined in 3.b. above to each Medicaid claim for that physician or physician practice plan and calculate the average commercial payments for the claims.
- d. The Division of Medicaid will also align the same paid Medicaid claims with the Medicare fees for each CPT code for the physician or physician practice plan and calculate the Medicare payment amounts for those claims. The Medicare fees will be the most currently available national non-facility fees.
- e. The Division of Medicaid will then calculate an overall Medicare to commercial conversion factor by dividing the total amount of the average commercial payments for the claims by the total Medicare payments for the claims. The commercial to Medicare ratio will be re-determined every three (3) years.

State of Mississippi

**METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES-OTHER
TYPES OF CARE**

- f. For each quarter the Division of Medicaid will extract paid Medicaid claims for each qualifying provider types for that quarter.
- g. The Division of Medicaid will then calculate the amount Medicare would have paid for those claims by aligning the claims with the Medicare fee schedule by CPT code. The Medicare fees will be the national non-facility fees that were effective at the time the Medicaid claims were paid.
- h. The total amount that Medicare would have paid for those claims is then multiplied by the Medicare to commercial conversion factor and the amount Medicaid actually paid for those claims is subtracted to establish the supplemental payment amount for the qualifying provider types for that quarter.

The supplemental payments will be made on a quarterly basis and the Medicare equivalent of the average commercial rate of 159.28% factor will be rebased/updated every three (3) years by the Division of Medicaid. Supplemental payments will be directly remitted to the qualifying hospital or the physician practice plan to which participating physicians have assigned the Mississippi Medicaid payment.